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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLORADOQ

Civil Action No. 05-cv-00478-BNB-PAC

EDWARD I. KERBER,

NELSON B. PHELPS,

JOANNE WEST,

NANCY A. MEISTER,

THOMAS J. INGEMANN, JR.,

Individually, and as Representative of Plan participants
and Plan beneficiaries of the QWEST PENSION PLAN,

Plaintiffs,
V8.

QWEST PENSION PLAN,

QWEST EMPLOYEES BENEFIT COMMITTEE,

QWEST PENSION PLAN DESIGN COMMITTEE,
QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL, INC,,

Defendants.

FINAL PRETRIAL ORDER

1. DATE AND APPEARANCES

A final pretrial conference in the above case was held on Monday, December 18, 2006, at
3:00 p.m. in Courtroom AS501, 5™ Floor of the United States Courthouse, 901 19" Street, Denver,
CO. Appearing for the parties were:

Curtis L. Kennedy, Esq. Elizabeth I. Kiovsky, Esq.

8405 E. Princeton Avenue BAIRD & KIOSKY, LLC

Denver, Colorado 80237-1741 2036 E. 17th Avenue

Telephone: (303) 770-0440 Denver, CO 80206-1106

Fax: (303) 843-0360 Telephone: (303) 322-5334

E-mail: CurtisLKennedy@aol.com Fax: (303) 813-4501

Atiorney for Plaintiffs E-mail: bethk@bairdkiovsky.com
Attorney for Defendants




Case 1:05-cv-00478-BNB-PAC  Document 121  Filed 12/19/2006 Page 2 of 52
Case 1:05-cv-00478-BNB-PAC  Document 119 Filed 12/11/2006 Page 2 of 39

2. JURISDICTION
The Court has jurisdiction of the claims for Relief based upon the civil enforcement
provisions of ERISA, 29 U.S.C. §§ 1132(a)(1)(B), 1132(a)(2), 1132(a)(3), 1132(e)(1), and

1132(f), and upon 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1337.

3. CLAIMS AND DEFENSES
In this proposed class action, the primary dispute concerns the Pension Death Benefit
(“PDB”), a fixed lump sum amount paid out of Qwest’s defined pension benefit plan, the
successor to the pension plans previously sponsored by U S WEST and AT&T. The parties
fully disagree whether or not the PDB, by virtue of historic Governing Plan documents,
Summary Plan Descriptions, course of dealings since 1980 and Plan fiduciaries’ representations,
became vested when an employee became service pension eligible.

A, Summary of Plaintiffs* Claims. Named Plaintiffs are participants in the Qwest

Pension Plan (Plan), each having more than 20 years employment service and having earned a
retirement service pension. The Plaintiffs assert four claims for relief based upon ERISA. For
many decades, a stable feature of the Plan (and predecessor Plans) has been a PDB payable upon
the death of a retiree receiving a service pension and delivered to his or her surviving spouse or
dependent beneficiaries, Plaintiffs contend that Qwest and its predecessors have a long history
of treating the PDB as a protected or vested fixed pension benefit payable from trust fund assets,
In September 2003, Qwest formally announced to Plaintiffs that “Qwest is considering
eliminating the death benefit for all retirees regardless of their retirement date.” A letter to be

mass mailed was fully prepared and signed. This was contrary to Named Plaintiffs’
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understanding, and they first realized they had been duped into believing the PDB was a
protected benefit. Qwest’s announced position on the PDB came too late for Plaintiffs to make
other financial arrangements for their spouses and beneficiaries so as to replace the expected
PDB. After Qwest Defendants® September 2003 announcement, there was a widespread uproar
from U S WEST/Qwest retirees protesting Qwest leadership’s threat to end the PDB. Thus,
Defendants thought about the matter and, then, told Kerber and Phelps that the decision to
completely eliminate the PDB was being delayed. It is noteworthy that the decision has not
been formally rescinded; implementation has merely been delayed. The announcement to
merely delay implementation of a decision to completely eliminate the PDB created more
uncertainty and anguish amongst retirees,

In December 2003, Qwest amended the Plan so as to eliminate the PDB for persons
ending employment after January 1, 2004, The PDB is so critical to not only Named Plaintiffs’
families, but thousands of Qwest retirees and their spouses and their beneficiaries, and Qwest
senior leadership continue to hold out with the threat that the company may some day take away
that important expected benefit. Accordingly, an internal ERISA claim was submitted on behalf
of Named Plaintiffs and a proposed class of retirees and sent to Qwest Defendants seeking a
resolution that the PDB is a protected pension benefit and would neither be eliminated nor
reduced. Qwest Defendants formally denied the request and confirmed that all administrative
remedies have been exhausted and that an action under ERISA § 502)(a) may be commenced.
(Second Amended Complaint at 4 41). Essentially, Qwest Defendants’ took the position there is
no need to further develop any administrative record.

Therefore, Named Plaintiffs in this civil action have exercised their rights under ERISA §
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502)(a)(1)}(B), 29 U.S.C. § 1132(a)(1)(B), to seek an order that will clarify Plan participants’
rights to future PDB under the terms of the Plan and for other declaratory, injunctive and
appropriate equitable relief.

For their narrative summary of the First Claim (Plaintiffs incorporate the Second

Amended Complaint at 1§ 149-165), Plaintiffs state that this claim is based upon breach of
fiduciary duty and equitable estoppel due to a failure to disclose material information and failure
to issue SPDs containing correct information about the PDB. Named Plaintiffs contend
Defendants Qwest and the Plan administrators had a duty to communicate material facts
affecting the interests of Named Plaintiffs and other participants. Defendants had a duty to
disclose material information, including whether the PDB could be reduced or eliminated in the
absence of a Plan termination.

In all Summary Plan Descriptions (“SPDs™) issued to Named Plaintiffs énd proposed
Class members during the years 1977 through at least the merger of U S WEST and Qwest, there
were representations that retirecs were entitled to the PDB and other written information was
provided representing that benefit was not a “welfare” benefit, but was a protected defined
pension Plan benefit. For instance, in all of the SPDs issued during years 1977 through at least
1996, under the heading “Type of Plan” the Plan fiduciaries affirmatively represented that under
the definitions of ERISA, the Plan was “classified” as a “*defined benefit Plan’ for service and
deferred vested pension purposes and for payment of certain sickness death benefits upon the

death of a Pension Plan participant.” ! Plaintiffs contend that in nene of those Plan publications

! The Plan sponsor deliberately chose not to classify the “payment of certain sickness death benefits” as a

“welfare benefit.” At the very least, that language appearing in all of the SPDs representing the “payment of certain
sickness death benefits” as a “defined benefit Plan™ is positive indication of ambiguity, something to make yvou
seratch your head, thus, opening the door to consideration of extrinsic evidence, including testimony of former Plan
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and SPDs issued by AT&T (Baby Bells), U S WEST and Qwest were there statements and
disclosures to advise Plan participants that the sponsoring company reserved the right to reduce
or eliminate the PDB afier a Plan participant had retired, in the absence of a Plan termination.

Plaintiffs contend that when the Plan sponsor and Plan administrators classified and
represented the PDB to be a defined benefit Plan, they elected to treat the PDB to be an
entitlement, an “accrued benefit” under ERISA Section 3(23), 29 U.S.C. § 1002(23), subject to
strict vesting requirements. Furthermore, the Plan sponsor filed Form 5500s, executed by the
Plan administrator under penalty of perjury, representing the PDBs were ‘vested’ benefits
actuarially funded in the trust fund,

Prior to December 2003, neither the Plan sponsor nor Plan administrators ever made a
Jormal disclosure in the SPDs distributed to Kerber and Phelps and putative Class members
advising that the PDB was not a protected benefit or that it could either be reduced or eliminated

by the sponsoring company. Now, Qwest Defendants are taking a position adverse to the

sponsor executives, former COMMITTEE members and former Plan administrators.

% For instance, in a SPD mass mailed to retirees in April 2003, Qwest Defendants reported the
following: “Under what circumstances will Sickness/Accidental Death Benefits [PDB] not be
paid?

J If a claim for benefits is received more than one year following the death of an eligible participant;

. if a suit for damages on account of the death of an employee is brought against any Participating
Company or against any other company with which arrangements have been made for the
interchange of benefit obligations (for example, an Interchange Company under the MPA);

. If there are any claims (other than under the Plan) presented for damages on account of the death
of an employee is brought against any Participating Company or against any other company with
which arrangements have been made for the interchange of benefit obligations; or

* If the employee’s TOE [beginning term of employment] date is March 1, 1993 or later

. You are eligible for a Sickness, but no Accident, Death benefit if you de while on a transitional or
surplus transitional leave, even if you are not terminated from employment.

Notably, Qwest Defendants did not include in this list of disqualifying circumstances a clear
disclosure that Qwest Defendants considered the PDB to be an ancillary or welfare benefit
subject to being reduced or eliminated at any time, at the whim of Qwest Defendants.

5
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financial detriment of Named Plaintiffs and putative Class members. Kerber, Phelps and
putative Class members reasonably and detrimentally relied upon written representations made
by Plan administrators that there was a commitment to provide a PDB to the surviving spouse or
dependent beneficiaries. If the PDB was always a “welfare” benefit, which it wasn’t,
nevertheless, Kerber, Phelps and putative Class members were prejudiced from the lack of notice
of material information contrary to the written representations in Plan publications and SPDs
given to them about the PDB.

The omissions and written misrepresentations about the PDB were material to Kerber,
Phelps and putative Class members, because a reasonable Plan participant considered the
information important in making retirement elections and estate plannin;g decisions about
whether to buy life insurance on the market. When Kerber and Phelps retired from U S WEST
and made their respective retirement elections and had to choose the structure of benefits to be
received for themselves and their spouses, they specifically and detrimentally relied upon
representations and assurances classifying the PDB to be protected, not a “take away™ benefit.
The PDB was a huge financial component of Kerber's and Phelps’s respective financial and
estate planning. For Kerber and Phelps and most similarly situated retirees, the PDB is the
equivalent of the retiree’s last annual salary while employed at a U § WEST company.

In July 2000, U S WEST merged with Qwest, the surviving named company. Named
Plaintiffs contend that after U S WEST’s merger with QWEST and until September 2003, Plan
administrators continued to treat the PDB and disseminate formal information to lead retirees in
to believing the PDB was a protected vested or defined pension benefit.

Now, due to a combination of age, health condition, and meager financial factors, Kerber,
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Phelps and thousands of putative Class members cannot possibly afford the cost of purchasing
life insurance on the market so as to replace the face amount of the expected PDB.

Elements of First Claim and Relief Requested. With the exception of element No. 3

below, Plaintiffs have the burden of proof and will establish the following elements:

(1)  Qwest Defendants (as successor in interest to U § WEST entities), the party to be
estopped, was aware of the true fact and legal obligations. Former Plan sponsors
and Plan Administrators (U S WEST, Mountain Bell, Northwest Bell and Pacific
Northwest Bell) had a fiduciary duty, pursuant to the ERISA statute and
associated regulations to include certain information in the Summary Plan
Descriptions (SPDs). See ERISA Section 102(b), 29 U.S.C. § 1022(b); 29
C.F.R. § 2520.102-3, Under the statute, a SPD must explain the “circumstances
which may result in disqualification, ineligibility, or denial or loss of benefits,” 29
U.S.C. § 1022(b). Under the regulation, a SPD must contain:

“a statement clearly identifying circumstances which may result in
disqualification, ineligibility, or denial, loss, forfeiture, suspension,
offset, reduction, or recovery (e.g., by exercise of subrogation or
reimbursement rights) of any benefits that a participant or
beneficiary might otherwise reasonably expect the plan to provide
on the basis of the description of benefits required by paragraphs
(j) and (k) of this section. In addition to other required information,
plans must include a summary of any plan provisions governing
the authority of the plan sponsors or others to terminate the plan or
amend or eliminate benefits under the plan and the circumstances,
if any, under which the plan may be terminated or benefits may be
amended or eliminated; a summary of any plan provisions
governing the benefits, rights and obligations of participants and
beneficiaries under the plan on termination of the plan or
amendment or elimination of benefits under the plan, including, in
the case of an employee pension benefit plan, a summary of any
provisions relating to the accrual and the vesting of pension
benefits under the plan upon termination; and a summary of any
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plan provisions governing the allocation and disposition of assets

of the plan upen termination. Plans also shall include a summary of

any provisions that may result in the imposition of a fee or charge

on a participant or beneficiary, or on an individual account thereof,

the payment of which is a condition to the receipt of benefits under

the plan. The foregoing summaries shall be disclosed in

accordance with the requirements under 29 CFR 2520.102-2(b).”
29 CF.R. § 2520-102-3(). Former Plan sponsors and Plan administrators had a
duty to disclose to Plaintiffs Kerber, Phelps and others similarly situated all
material information about PDBs and any right on the part of the Plan sponsor
and successor Plan sponsor to reduce, amend or eliminate the PDBs. The Former
Plan sponsors and Plan administrators had a duty not to make misrepresentations
or give out misleading information about the benefits or any ‘reservation of
rights’ on the part of the Plan sponsor,

(2)  If a corporate Plan sponsor believes it has the right to amend a pension Plan so as
to reduce or eliminate certain Plan benefits then, that right to adversely affect the
Plan participant’s expected future benefits constitutes one of the "circumstances
which may result in denial of benefits" within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 1022(b)
and, therefore, that "circumstance" ought to be clearly and conspicuously
disclosed and stated within the SPD issued to Plan participants;

(3}  Qwest Defendants must present evidence that an updated SPD was timely
delivered to Plaintiffs Kerber, Phelps and others similarly situated, so that they
could make an informed decision about their retirement elections and know their

rights to the PDBs as of their respective employment separation dates and next

day commencement of retirement pay status. In other words, the burden is on
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(4)

()

(6)

Qwest Defendants to show there was compliance with the requirements of
ERISA Section 104(b), 29 U.S.C. § 1024(b), 29 C.F.R. § 2520.104b-2(b) and 29
C.F.R. § 2520.104b-4(a)(2)(iv) on February 28, 1990 the date both Plaintiffs
Kerber and Phelps ended employment at U S WEST and commenced receiving
service pension benefits;

Neither the former Plan sponsors nor Plan administrators provided Plaintiffs
Kerber, Phelps, and others similarly situated, with a SPD at the time of their
election of service pension benefits a SPD which conspicuously and adequately
informed the Plan participants that the Plan sponsor retained the right to amend ,
reduce or eliminate PDBs after Plan participants’ respective retirements;

The nonperformance or failure to make such disclosure on the part of the former
Plan sponsors or Plan Administrators violated 29 U.8.C. § 1022(b); 29 C.F.R. §
2520.102-3 and constituted a breach of fiduciary, if, the PDBs were then
considered mere welfare or ancillary benefits when Plaintiffs Kerber, Phelps and
others similarly situated class members separated employment and commenced
retirement pay status;

The former Plan sponsors and Plan administrators treated the PDBs as, not
welfare or ancillary benefits, but funded defined benefit Plan benefits that could
not be reduced or taken away after Plaintiffs Kerber, Phelps and others similarly
situated commenced. To the extent that PDBs were mere welfare or ancillary
benefits that could be reduced or eliminated, then the former Plan sponsor and

Plan administrators made material misrepresentations as they counseled and
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represented to Plaintiffs Kerber, Phelps and others similarly situated that they
could count on the PDBs when making their retirement choices and future
financial planning and that their mandatory beneficiaries were entitled to receive
the PDBs. Qwest Defendants (as successor in interest to U S WEST entities), the
party to be estopped intended that the representations or misrepresentations or
lack of disclosure of material information be acted upon or had reason to believe
that Plaintiffs Kerber, Phelps and others similarly situated would rely on the same
and would not know otherwise;

{7 Plaintiffs Kerber, Phelps and others similarly situated did not know nor should
they have known, the true facts; and they reasonably and detrimentally relied on
the misrepresentation or contrary representations about the PDBs and made
irrevocable retirement decisions and other financial planning decisions;

(8)  Plaintiffs seek an order declaring that, if the PDB was always a “welfare” benefit,
Defendants, by making omissions and failing to make necessary disclosures in the
SPDs, failed to discharge duties to act solely in the interests of Named Plaintiffs
and putative class members, as required by ERISA Section 404(a)(1), 29 U.S.C.
§ 1104(a)(1). Named Plaintiffs request this Court to apply principles of
federal common law equitable estoppel, in as much as the Plan
publications and SPDs contained ambiguous representations about whether the
PDB should be considered an “entitlement”, or a vested protected and accrued
“defined pension benefit”, and prior Plan fiduciaries and Plan administrators

made representations which constitute an oral interpretation of the ambiguities;

10
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{9y  Plaintiffs seek further class-wide appropriate equitable relief, including a
declaration that due to the aforesaid actions by prior Plan fiduciaries and Plan
administrators, the PDB is deemed under the Plan to be a vested, protected or
accrued pension benefit, not subject to reduction or elimination absent a Plan
termination. This Court is asked to apply principles of equitable estoppel, under
ERISA § 502(a)(3), 29 U.S.C. § 1132(a)(3), and issue an order forbidding Qwest
Defendants and successors from ever altering, modifying, eliminating or
terminating Named Plaintiffs’ and putative Class members’ expected PDBs in the
absence of a Plan termination.,

For their narrative summary of the Second Claim, (Plaintiffs incorporate the Second
Amended Complaint at 4 166-188), Plaintiffs state that beginning in 1998, the Plan sponsor
acted to take advantage of the provisions of Sections 401(h) and 420 of the Internal Revenue
Code, 26 U.S.C. §§ 401(h), 420, which enable sponsors of defined benefit Plans, under certain
strictly defined circumstances, to make a “qualified transfer” and use certain “excess assets” in
the pension Plan to fund retiree medical benefits for persons who are retired participants in the
same pension Plan.  Among the conditions and limitations imposed by Section 401(h) and
420(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code is that the pension benefits of all participants and
beneficiaries which were accrued under the Plan before the date of transfer must become vested
and nonforfeitable, just as they would have in the event that the Plan had terminated immediately
before the IRC Section 420 transfer.

The Plan has always stated that, in the event of a Plan termination, PDBs have second

payment pricrity ahead of certain deferred vested Plan benefits which have third and subsequent

11
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payment priorities.

The Plan sponsor made several consecutive Section 420 transfers of pension assets in the
Plan as follows: in December 1998 approximately $60 miilion; in November-December 1999
approximately $120 million; in December 2000 approximately $111 million; and in December
2001 approximately $120 million. Each time the Plan witnessed a transfer of pension assets
pursuant to IRC § 420, the Plan required (in Section 11.2(b)(ii)) that, upon Plan termination or
partial termination, Plan assets are to be applied, after making the payments required by ERISA
Section 4044, 29 U.S.C. § 1344, “to make provision for the payment of death benefits
aftributable to deaths occurring prior to the date of termination which would have been payable
from the Trust Fund, and for the payment, upon the deaths of retired employees who are on the
pension roll as of the date of termination and of employees eligible as of that date for retirement,
of death benefits which would have been payable from the Trust Fund, had.the Plan not been so
terminated.” The Plan next required (in Sections 11.2(b)(iii), (iv), (v) and (vi)) that Plan assets
be applied for the payment of deferred vested pensions starting at age sixty-five and continuing
until the death of the former employee.

In short, the Plan’s provisions at the time of each IRC Section 420 transfer assigned at
termination of the Plan a higher priority to the payment of PDBs than payment of deferred vested
pension benefits. This provision was a standard feature of the Plan and Named Plaintiffs West,
Meister and Ingemann contend it reflects unambiguous Plan spensor intent to treat the PDB as an
accrued nonforfeitable vested benefit when a participant retired or was eligible for a retirement
service pension. In accordance with the requirements of IRC § 420, and applicable federal

regulations, each time the Plan witnessed the IRC § 420 transfer, Plaintiffs’ West’s, Meister’s,

12
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Ingemann’s and proposed class members’ pension benefits became nonforfeitable in the same
manner which would have been required if the Plan had been tenninafed immediately before
each IRC § 420 transfer. Therefore, in conformity with the requirements of IRC § 420, the Plan
included terms that vested all accrued benefits as of the date of each IRC § 420 transfer.

For example, when the first IRC § 420 transfer occurred in December 1998, the Plan
stated at Section 14.4 (a) that “[t}he Accrued Benefit of each Participant who had not terminated
employment with the Company and all Participant Companies as of the date of a Qualified
Transfer shall become Vested and nonforfeitable in the same manner which would be required if
the Plan had terminated immediately before such Qualified Transfer.” The same Plan language
existed during the 1999, 2000 and 2001 IRC § 420 transfers. Therefore, Named Plaintiffs
contend that, due to the combined operation of the IRC § 420 transfers and the governing Plan
language, all service pension eligible Plan participants became fully vested in their PDBs.

Notwithstanding prior SPD representations and the Plan sponsors actions, including
representation under penalty of perjury made in Form 5500 filings and the operative affect of the
IRC Section 420 transfers during years 1998-2001, Qwest Defendants decided to partially
eliminate the PDB. On December 5, 2003, the Plan sponsor executed Plan Amendment 2003-5
which changed Plan Section 7.3, infer alia, as follows: “. .. no Death Benefits shall be made
under Section 7.3(a), (b), or (d) with respect to a Former Participant who Terminates on or after
January 1, 2004. . . . no lump sum payments shail be made under Section 7.3(c) on or after
January 1, 2004, except to the extent the Participant Terminates prior to January 1, 2004, ..~
(Second Amended Complaint at 177). As of the date of execution of Plan Amendment 2003-5,

all Named Plaintiffs had earned a retirement service pension, all had become entitled to receive

13
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the PDB and none consented to the partial termination of the PDB.

Plan Amendment 2003-5 is contrary to Plan provisions controlling when Plaintiffs
Kerber and Phelps retired in year 1990. When Plaintiffs Kerber and Phelps retired, the
controlling Plan document stated at Section 4.8: . .. “The Company undertakes to preserve the
integrity of the U S WEST Management Pension Fund as a fund held in trust or by an insurance
company or companies as permitted by law to be applied solely to pension and death benefits
purposes and to take such action as may be necessary or appropriate to insure the application of
the entire fund to such purposes.” Plan Amendment 2003-5 was created so as to remove
millions of dollars of liabilities for PDBs and allow QWEST to show a curtailment income gain
for corporate income reporting purposes. Plan Amendment 2003-5 is completely contrary to the
long standing purposes of the Plan.

Therefore, Plaintiffs Meister, West and Ingemann contend Plan Amendment 2003-5
which partially terminated PDBs conflicts with the Plan’s prior commitments and is null and
void. Those Plaintiffs contend this Plan amendment violates the anti-cutback provisions of
ERISA Section 204(g), 29 U.S.C. § 1054(g), since PDBs, part of the accrued retirement service
pensions earned by numerous Plan participants, have been eliminated. Plaintiffs West, Meister
and Ingemann contend the actions by Defendants were a violation of the Plan provisions which
expressly provided for the full vesting of all benefits under the Plan which were accrued as of
each IRC § 420 transfer of pension assets. Those Plaintiffs challenge Plan Amendment 2003-5
and they seek an order reforming the Plan and striking that amendment, Pursuant to ERISA
Section 502(a)(3), 29 U.S.C. § 1132(a)(3), Plaintiffs seek an order declaring Qwest Pension Plan

Amendment 2003-5 which purported to eliminate the PDB as illegal, in violation of the terms

14
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and conditions of the 1998-2001 I.R.C. Section 420 transfers, and order the Plan amendment
stricken and the Plan reformed to reinstate the PDB for persons retiring on or after January 1,
2004, with or without a lump sum distribution. Plaintiffs, request this Court enter an order
requiring the Plan to notify and make payment of the correct amount of the PDB, together with
interest, to each Plan participant and qualified mandatory beneficiaries for whom the PDB
became payable after January 1, 2004. Named Plaintiffs seek removal from the Plan
administration those persons who supported, assisted and acquiesced in and defended the Plan
sponsor’s efforts to eliminate the PDB for persons commencing retirement pay status on or after
January 1, 2004.

Elements of Second Claim and Relief Requested. Plaintiffs have the burden of proof

and will establish the following elements:

(1)  Former Plan sponsor and Plan Administrators (U S WEST, Mountain Bell,
Northwestern Bell and Pacific Northwest Bell) represented and classified the
PDBs to be defined pension benefits, not welfare benefits and they treated the
PDBs as vested benefits and an entitlement upon a Plan participant becoming
service pension eligible;

(2)  When making IRC Section 420 transfers of monies from the pension Plan to pay
retiree medical health care costs, the Plan sponsors and Plan administrators
represented that Plan participants® vested benefits were protected in the same
manner as if the Plan had terminated at the time of cach IRC Section 420 transfer;

(3)  Atthe time of each IRC Section 420 transfer, the Plan governing documents

provided that upon termination the PDBs were vested and had a second payment

15
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4)

()

(6)

(7)

priority;

By virtue of having made IRC Section 420 transfers during years 1998-2001, and
the termination priorities then stated under the Plan governing documents, the
PDBs could not eliminated or reduced for any person who was service pension
eligible within one year of any of the 1998-2001 IRC Section 420 transfers;
Qwest Defendants illegally amended the Plan so as to eliminate PDBs for persons
including Plaintiffs West, Meister and Ingemann who, although service pension
eligible, had not yet ended employment service before January 1, 2004. Plan
Amendment 2003-5 runs afoul of the operative effect of the IRC Section 420
transfers and the governing Plan language before Plan Amendment 2003-5 and,
therefore, is null and void and violates the anti-cutback provisions of ERISA
Section 204(g), 29 U.S8.C. § 1054(g), since PDBs, part of the accrued retirement
service pensions earned by numerous Plan participants, have been eliminaied,
Plaintiffs Meister, West, and Ingemann, pursuant to ERISA Section 502(a)(3), 29
U.S.C. § 1132(a)(3), seek an order declaring Qwest Pension Plan Amendment
2003-5 which purported to eliminate the PDB as illegal, in violation of the terms
and conditions of the 1998-2001 I.R.C. Section 420 transfers, and order the Plan
amendment stricken and the Plan reformed to reinstate the PDB for persons
retiring on or after January 1, 2004, with or without a lump sum distribution;
Plaintiffs West, Meister and Ingemann request this Court enter an order requiring
the Plan to notify and make payment of the correct amount of the PDB, together

with interest, to each Plan participant and qualified mandatory beneficiaries for

16
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whom the PDB became payable after January 1, 2004; and

(8)  Plaintiffs West, Meister and Ingemann seck removal from the Plan administration
those persons who supported, assisted and acquiesced in and defended the Plan
sponsor’s efforts to climinate the PDB for persons commencing retirement pay
status on or after January 1, 2004.

For their narrative summary of the Third Claim, (Plaintiffs incorporate the Second

Amended Complaint at § 189-192) Named Plaintiffs, pursuant to ERISA Section 502(a)(1)(B),
29 U.S.C. Section 1132(a)(1)(B), request this Court to clarify their rights to future payment of
PDBs under the terms of the Plan. Named Plaintiffs seek a declaration that their mandatory
beneficiaries, to the extent there are any at time of death, are entitled to the PDB payable from
the Plan. Named Plaintiffs seek a declaration that persons who retired on or after January 1,
2004 and received a lump sum distribution, minus the value of the PDB, are entitled to receive
an additional lump sum payment representing the unpaid PDB, plus interest.
Elements of Third Claim and Relief Requested. Plaintiffs have the burden of proof
and will establish the following elements: |
(1)  Plaintiffs Kerber and Phelps completely exhausted internal administrative
remedies and submitted written claims which they asked Qwest Defendants to
treat as class-wide claims; all claims were denied;
(2)  The parties disagree as to Plaintiffs Kerber’s Phelps’s and Ingemann’s future
rights to PDBs;
(3} The parties disagree as to Plaintiffs West’s and Meister’s right to receive the

present value of the PDB, with interest, as part of their entitfement to lump sum
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